
1 
 

 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 
October 1, 2012 

7:00 P.M. 
Municipal Meeting Room 

Brunswick Station 
16 Station Avenue 

 
Pledge of Allegiance  
 
Roll Call  
 
Public Comment:  
 
Correspondence:   
 
Adjustments to the Agenda:  
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Council Committee Updates  
(b) Update on Quiet Zones for train 
(c) Permission to apply for and expend a 2013 Byrne Grant for the Police Department 

(Action Required) 
(d) Permission to apply for and expend an Emergency Management Planning Grant for 

the Fire Department (Action Required) 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
102. The Town Council will hear public comments on amendments to the Zoning 

ordinance regarding rezoning the west side of Federal Street between Mason and 
Center Streets to Town Center 1, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 

HEARING/ACTION 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
103. The Town Council will consider requesting that the Planning Board review and make 

recommendations to the Council regarding the Town Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 2, 
Section 216, relating to the review of demolitions in the Village Review Overlay 
Zone, and take any appropriate action. (Councilor King and Councilor Tucker) 

ACTION 
 
104. The Town Council will discuss the recreation and open space assets located on the 

former Navy housing off of McKeen Street to determine if the Council has an interest 
in accepting them from the developer, and will determine if future action is needed.  
(Manager) 

DISCUSSION 



2 
 

 
105. The Town Council will consider appointments to the Town’s Boards and Committees, 

and will take any appropriate action. (Appointments Committee) 
ACTION 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
(a) Approval of the Minutes of September 4, 2012 
(b) Approval of minutes of September 17, 2012 
(c) Appointment of Wardens and Deputy Wardens for the Election on November 6, 2012 
(d) Approval of the Election Warrant for November 6, 2012 
(e) Approval of extended hours for registrar 
 

 
INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE 

COMMUNICATION SHOULD CONTACT  
THE TOWN MANAGER’S OFFICE AT 725-6659 

(TDD 725-5521) 
 

  



3 
 

Brunswick Town Council 
Agenda  

October 1, 2012 
Council Notes and Suggested Motions 

 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Council Committee Updates:  Councilors with information on the Committees they are 

involved with will share information with the Council and public. 
 

Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 
 

(b) Update on request for Quiet Zone designation:  Manager Brown will update the 
Council and the public on the status of these applications.  A copy of Manager 
Brown’s memo is included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 

 
(c) Permission to apply for and expend 2013 Byrne Grant for the Police Department 

(Action Required):  This item is to request the Council to allow the Police Department 
to apply for and expend this grant.  If they receive it, the funds will be used for 
training and equipment as outlined in a memo from Captain Waltz, who will be at the 
meeting at answer any questions.  This grant requires no Town match.  A copy of 
grant information is included in your packet. 
 
Suggested Motion:   
Motion to allow the Police Department to apply and expend, if received, the 2013 
Byrne Grant in the amount of $7,787.00. 
 

(d) Permission to apply for and expend an Emergency Management Planning Grant for 
the Fire Department (Action Required):  The Fire Department is requesting permission 
to apply for this grant in the amount of $20,000 to help offset the cost of Emergency 
Management Planning, which the Town is required to do.  This is an annual grant the 
Fire Department has received the last few years.  Chief Brillant will be at the meeting 
to answer any questions.  A copy of his memo and application is included in your 
packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:   
Motion to allow the Fire Department to apply and expend, if received, an Emergency 
Management Planning Grant in the amount of $20,000. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
102. This item is the required public hearing on amendments to the Zoning Ordinance 

regarding rezoning the west side of Federal Street between Mason and Center Streets 
to Town Center 1.  This item comes back to the Council after the Council’s request 
that the Planning Board review rezoning 28 Federal Street for commercial use.  After 



4 
 

reviewing the zoning history for the property and holding a public hearing, the 
Planning Board is recommending that the zone be changed on Federal Street from 
Center to Mason Street from Town Residential 2 to Town Center 1.  Copies of a 
memo from Anna Breinich and maps are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:   
Motion to adopt amendments to the Zoning Ordinance regarding rezoning the west 
side of Federal Street between Mason and Center Streets to Town Center 1. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
103. This item seeks recommendations on how to improve the process for reviewing 

demolitions in the Village Review Zone. Chapter 2, Section 216 of the Town Zoning 
Ordinance designates the Village Review Zone, establishes the Village Review Board, 
and vests in the Village Review Board the power to grant Certificates of 
Appropriateness for new construction, additions, alterations, relocations or 
demolitions. The granting or denial of a Certificate of Appropriateness for 
demolition is currently based on the criteria in Section 216.9 as well as findings based 
on factors listed in Section 216.10.C.  The Planning Board will be asked to review the 
Ordinance, taking into account the purposes of the Ordinance, the Comprehensive 
Plan update, and the history of implementing the Ordinance.  The Board will be 
encouraged to receive comment from the public, the members of the Village Review 
Board, and Town Planning Department staff in developing recommendations to the 
Council.  The Planning Board will be requested to make a recommendation to the 
Town Council no later than November 14.  Copies of relative sections of the Zoning 
Ordinance and Comprehensive Plan are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:   
Motion to request that the Planning Board review and make recommendations to the 
Council regarding the Town Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 2, Section 216, relating to the 
review of demolitions in the Village Review Overlay Zone. 

 
104. This item is for the Council to discuss any interest in accepting the recreation and open 

space assets located on the former Navy housing off of McKeen Street.  The property 
owner, Affordable Midcoast Housing, has requested the Town accept them and has 
agreed to pay costs to make repairs and maintenance.  There is an overhead electrical 
transmission line above the basketball court and baseball diamond.  Staff is 
recommending the Council visit the site prior to any action at your October 15th 
meeting.  Copies of a memo from Manager Brown, maps of the site, costs and draft 
resolution for acceptance are included in your packet.   

 
Suggested Motion:   
No recommended motion since this is a discussion item. 

 
105. At this time the Appointments Committee will make nominations to fill vacancies on 

Town Boards and Committees.  At your September 4th meeting, you appointed 
Stephen Cohen to the Conservation Commission, which had been advertised in error 
as having a vacancy when it had been filled earlier in the summer.  Upon speaking 



5 
 

with him, he expressed an interest in serving on the Zoning Board of Appeals.  Copies 
of the Committee’s report and the applications are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
Nominations will be made, with no seconds required, and the Council will then vote 
on the nominations. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

(a) Approval of the Minutes of September 4, 2012:  A copy of the minutes is included in 
your packet.  

(b) Approval of minutes of September 17, 2012:  A copy of the minutes is included in 
your packet. 

(c) Appointment of Wardens and Deputy Wardens for the Election on November 6, 2012:  
This item is for the appointment of Wardens and Deputy Wardens for the upcoming 
election.  A copy of a memo from the Town Clerk, with the list of nominees, is 
included in your packet. 

(d) Approval of the Election Warrant for November 6, 2012:  This item approves the 
election warrant for the Town’s municipal election.  A copy of the warrant is included 
in your packet. 

(e) Approval of extended hours for registrar:  This item approves the extended hours for 
the registrar.  A copy of the proposed hours is included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - A 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 

TOWN MANAGERS OFFICE 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO: Brunswick Council   
 
FROM: Gary Brown, Town Manager  
 
DATE: September 26, 2012    
 
RE: Quiet Zone designation update     
 
The Council has previously been advised that staff would be working on extending the 
existing quiet zone designation to include Union and Stanwood Streets. 
 
Quiet zone applications require that all crossings be completed prior to submitting them.  
With the crossings complete and the train schedule released, we are able to submit the 
necessary paperwork to seek the extension of the quiet zones. It will likely be a matter 
of about three months before the extension is approved. 
 
As this matter progresses, we will keep the Council informed. 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - C 
BACK UP MATERIALS 







 
 

MANAGER’S REPORT - D 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 













 
 

 
ITEM 102 
 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



O:\Word\Public hearings - Council\2012 public hearings\oct 1 2012 zoning federal street.docx 

 
 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 
PUBLIC HEARING 

 
THE BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL will hold public hearings at their regular 
meeting on Monday, October 1, 2012, 7:00 p.m. in the Municipal Meeting Room (Room 
217), Brunswick Station, 16 Station Avenue, to receive public comment on the following 
amendments: 
 
Item 1. The Town Council will hear public comments on amendments to the Zoning 

ordinance regarding rezoning the west side of Federal Street between Mason and 
Center Streets to Town Center 1. 

 
For more information contact the Town Manager’s office at 725-6659. 
 
INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE 
COMMUNICATION PLEASE CONTACT THE TOWN MANAGER'S OFFICE AT 
725-6659 (TDD 725-5521) 
 

   Fran Smith, Town Clerk 
Brunswick, Maine 

 
 
Times Record – September 20, 2012 

 















 
 

 
ITEM 103 
 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
 

Zoning Ordinance Sections 
relative to the Village Review 
Board 
 





















 
 

Comprehensive Plan Sections 
relative to the Village Review 
Board 
 



















 
 

 
ITEM 104 
 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 

TOWN MANAGERS OFFICE 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO: Brunswick Council   
 
FROM: Gary Brown, Town Manager  
 
DATE: September 26, 2012     
 
RE: McKeen Street recreation and open space assets     
 
Affordable Mid-Coast Housing has requested that the Town of Brunswick accept the 
recreation and open space assets at the former Navy Housing on McKeen Street. Tom 
Farrell, Director of Parks and Recreation, and I have met with Mr. George Schott to 
discuss the condition of the playground equipment, the basketball court, the equipment 
needs for the town to maintain these areas and the interconnecting paths. 
 
The Department of Parks and Recreation have developed a cost estimate to make 
repairs to the equipment, resurface the basketball court and to purchase a tractor to 
mow the grass and remove the snow. The total estimate developed by the Department 
is $95,512. Attached is the summary of the costs identified by the Department of Parks 
and Recreation. 
 
Affordable Mid-Coast Housing has agreed to provide funding in the amount that has 
been identified upon acceptance by the Town Council of the recreation and open space 
assets at McKeen Street.  
 
One of the goals is to fully integrate the former Navy housing into the Brunswick 
community. The acceptance of these assets will be one step in this process as the 
Department of Parks and Recreation will assume the same level of maintenance and 
operations at these facilities as they do at other similar facilities. 
 
There is an issue that concerns the overhead electrical transmission lines that are 
above the basketball court and baseball diamond. This is not a situation that the Town 
would normally develop, but it is what is present. We have met on-site with CMP to gain 
some information about the situation. There is no concern regarding a possible situation 
where a basketball or baseball or other object could hit the lines and result in the lines 
falling down.  
 
The staff recommendation is for the Council to either visit the site individually or as a 
group to observe the assets as well as the issue that regards the transmission line. This 
issue can return to the Council at the October 15 meeting for action. 
 









 

 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 
TOWN COUNCIL 

 
A Resolution Authorizing the Acceptance of Certain Parks and Recreation Parcels from Affordable 
Midcoast Housing and the Establishment of a Special Revenue Fund to Maintain and Improve the 

Parcels as well as any Facilities Located on or Associated with the Accepted Parcels 
 
WHEREAS, Affordable Midcoast Housing, LLC (“Affordable”) has acquired certain real estate and 
other assets, formerly owned by the United States Navy and used to provide housing and other amenities 
to military families; and 
 
WHEREAS, Affordable has offered certain parks and recreation lands and the facilities on them to the 
Town of Brunswick (“Town”) as depicted on a “Preliminary Master Easement Plan McKeen Street 
Landing, McKeen Street, Brunswick, Maine, Made For Affordable Midcoast Housing, LLC” by Owen 
Haskell, Inc., and dated September 5, 2012 (“McKeen Street Easement Plan”); and 
 
WHEREAS, Affordable has also offered to the Town the sum of approximately $95,512 to be used to 
make improvements to the offered lands and facilities, as well as to fund maintenance costs the Town 
may incur during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town accepts the park and recreation lands depicted 
in the McKeen Street Easement Plan, along with: 
 

1. all related facilities including, but not limited to, playground equipment, fences, walkways, 
drainage structures and pipes, and any other items the Town Manager deems necessary and in the 
best interest of the Town; 

2. all easements and encumbrances the Town Manager deems necessary and in the best interest of 
the Town. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Town accepts the sum of $95,512 from Affordable, and any 
additional amounts that may be contributed or otherwise available to the Town, and placed in a special 
revenue fund for: 
 

1. any upgrades or improvements to the lands and facilities being accepted by the Town as well as 
any other the Town Manager deems necessary and in the best interest of the Town; 

2. maintenance of the lands and facilities through the period ending June 30, 2013.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any unencumbered funds remaining in the special revenue fund as 
of June 30, 2013 be transferred to the Town’s General Fund to be used at the Town’s discretion; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Town Manager is authorized to execute any other agreements 
or documents, and take any other actions, the Town Manager deems necessary and in the best interest of 
the Town; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any actions taken to date by the Town Manager in connection with 
this property transfer are hereby ratified, confirmed, and approved. 
 
Proposed to Town Council – September 17, 2012 
Adopted by Town Council –  
 
 
O:\Finance\Resolutions\Acceptance of Parks at McKeen Street Housing.docx 



 
 

 
ITEM 105 
 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
 
O:\Word\Boards-fran\AdvertisementsforBoards\12-oct app comm vacancy list.docx 9/25/2012 

BRUNSWICK BOARDS AND COMMITTEE OPENINGS 
 
The Brunswick Town Council will be holding interviews on Wednesday, September 19, 2012, to the following 
Boards and/or Committees vacancies listed below.  Interested citizens should complete an application form, available 
in the Town Clerk's Office.  Please return applications to the Town Clerk's Office by 4:30 P.M. on Monday, 
September 17, 2012. 
 
Cable TV Committee 

1 member – 3 year term to expire on 09/06/2015 
 
Fair Hearing Authority  
 3 members – 2 year terms to expire on 10/01/2014 
 
Marine Resource Committee 
 1 Alternative (Commercial Harvester) – 3 year term to expire on 05/01/2014 
 1 Alternate (no license holder) – 3 year term to expire on 05/01/2013 
 1 member (Commercial Harvesters) – 3 year term to expire on 05/01/2015 
 1 member (Recreation license holder) – 3 year term to expire on 05/01/2015 
 1 member (Commercial Harvesters) – balance 3 year terms to expire on 05/01/2013 
 
Recreation Commission 
 2 members -3 year terms to expire on 07/01/2015 
 
Recycling & Sustainability Committee 

1 members – balance of 3 year term to expire on 01/12/2015 
 
Sewer District Trustees 
 1 full member – balance of 3 year term to expire on 04/01/2013 
 
Trust Fund Advisory Committee 
 1 member – 3 year term to expire on 05/10/2015 
 
Zoning Board of Appeals  
 1 associate member –3 year term to expire on 12/18/2014 
 1 associate member – 3 year term to expire on 07/01/2015 
 
CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE 
  



To:   Brunswick Town Council 

From:  Councilor Watson, Chair Appointments Committee 

Subject:  Appointment to the Sewer District 

Date:  09/24/2012 

 

On the evening of 09/19/2012, the Appointments’ Committee met to interview an applicant for a vacant position on the 

Sewer District.   There are no opponents for this position.  The position is a three year term ending on 04/01/2015. 

The Appointments Committee recommends that Earle F. Harvey be appointed to the vacant three year term on the 

Sewer District. 

 















 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
September 4, 2012 

Executive Session – 6:00 P.M. 
Regular Meeting - 7:00 P.M. 

 
Councilors Present: Chair Joanne T. King, W. David Watson, Benjamin J. Tucker, Suzan 

Wilson, John M. Perreault, Gerald E. Favreau, Margo H. Knight, Sarah 
E. Brayman, and E. Benet Pols 

 
Councilors Absent: None  
 
Town Staff Present: Gary Brown, Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town Clerk/Assistant to 

Town Manager; John Eldridge, Finance Director; Mark Waltz, Police 
Captain; Denise Clavette, Business Development Manager; and TV 
video crew  

 
Chair King called the meeting to order and asked the Town Clerk for roll call. 
 
Executive Session –Disposition of real property §405(6)(C) and Economic Development 
to discuss the MRRA TIF per §405(6)(C) 
 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Wilson seconded, to go into executive session to 
discuss disposition of real property per §405(6)(C) and Economic Development 
regarding the MRRA TIF per §405(6)(C).  The motion carried with seven (7) yeas.  
Councilor Watson and Councilor Pols were not present for the vote. 
 
Councilor Knight excused herself from the discussion of the disposition of real property since 
she has an involvement with the group making the request. 
 
Meeting resumed at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Chair King called for the Pledge of Allegiance. 
  
Chair King asked for a moment of silence for David Haas, a Brunswick soldier who lost his 
life while on active duty in Korea. 
 
Public Comment: None 
 
Correspondence:   
 
Councilor Perreault spoke about the new press box at the football field, built with donated 
labor and materials and funds raised by the Brunswick Football Boosters. 
 
Councilor Brayman spoke about the new art by Susan Carlson and Amy Dionne that is 
currently hanging in the Council Chambers.  
 
 



Town Council Minutes 
September 4, 2012 
Page 2 
 
Adjustments to the Agenda:  
 
To add item #96.  The Town Council will discuss the next steps regarding the MRRA TIF 
districts, and take any appropriate action. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Council Committee Updates  
 
Reports were given regarding the Master Plan committee and the Recreation Trails and Open 
Space Committee. 
 
(b) Nomination papers due by September 7, 2012 
 
Fran Smith spoke regarding this item. 
 
(c) Acceptance of Forfeited Asset (Action Required) 
 
Manager Brown spoke regarding this item. 
 
Captain Waltz responded to a question from Councilor Perreault. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to accept and expend Forfeited 
Assets in the form of funds in the amount of $475.00, related to Criminal Action Docket 
No. CR-11-832.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of information from the Court will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
89. The Town Council will hear public comments on the following Special 

Amusement License application, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 
 
Special Amusement 
Bowl New England, Inc. 
D/B/A: Spare Time       David Frye 
276 Bath Road 

 
Chair King opened the public hearing; hearing no comments, she closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Knight seconded, to approve a Special 
Amusement License for Spare Time, located at 276 Bath Road.  The motion carried with 
nine (9) yeas. 
 
 
 



Town Council Minutes 
September 4, 2012 
Page 3 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
90. The Town Council will consider a request from the Mid Coast Hunger 

Prevention Program to use Town sidewalks for their “Singing for their Supper” 
on September 29, 2012, and to waive the event’s fee, and will take any 
appropriate action. (Manager) 

 
Manager Brown spoke regarding this item. 
 
Ethan Minton, Board member of the Mid Coast Hunger Prevention Program, spoke 
regarding this event.  He responded to questions from Councilor Knight and Councilor 
Brayman. 
 
Captain Waltz responded to a question from Chair King. 
 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Knight seconded, to approve the request from the 
Mid Coast Hunger Prevention Program for their “Singing for their Supper” benefit on 
September 29, 2012 to waive the $500 fee, except the $25 application fee to hold this 
event, as allowed under Chapter 10 Section 26(b)(14).  The motion carried with nine (9) 
yeas. 
 
(A copy of the letter from MCHPP will be attached to the official minutes.)  
 
91. The Town Council will consider a request from the Brunswick Downtown 

Association for use of the Lower Mall for the Taste of Brunswick Event, to be 
held on September 15, 2012, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 

 
Manager Brown spoke regarding this item and responded to a question from Councilor 
Perreault. 
 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Knight seconded, to approve the BDA’s request 
for the Taste of Brunswick event to be held on September 15, 2012, and to permit the 
sale of alcohol at the Taste of Brunswick Event. The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the BDA letter will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
92. The Town Council will consider negotiating the exchange of Town owned 

property at 28 Federal Street for Brunswick Development Corporation owned 
property on the corner of Pleasant and Stanwood Streets, and will take any 
appropriate action. (Manager) 

 
Manager Brown spoke regarding this item and responded to questions from Chair King. 
Councilor Brayman, Councilor Pols, and Councilor Perreault.  
 
Councilor Wilson and Councilor Perreault spoke regarding this item. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
September 4, 2012 
Page 4 
 
Councilor Wilson moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to authorize the Town Clerk to 
work with the Town Attorney to negotiate a property exchange agreement with the 
Brunswick Development Corporation with the stipulations presented in Manager 
Brown’s memo dated August 28, 2012, and, if necessary, to make some adjustments to 
the terms provided that the overall concept is not significantly changed.  The motion 
carried with six (6) yeas.  Councilor Perreault, Councilor Brayman, and Councilor Pols 
were opposed. 
 
(A copy of Manager Brown’s memo will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
93. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for September 17, 2012, 

on amendments to Chapter 15 “Traffic and Vehicles” regarding adding four flag 
stops for buses, and will take any appropriate action.  (Councilor Knight and 
Councilor Brayman) 

 
Councilor Knight spoke regarding this item. 
 
Captain Waltz responded to a question from Councilor Favreau. 
 
Chair King and Councilor Watson spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Tucker seconded, to set a public hearing for 
September 17, 2012, on amendments to Chapter 15 “Traffic and Vehicles” regarding 
adding four flag stops for buses.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas.   
 
94. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for September 17, 2012, 

on amendments to the Zoning Ordinance to increase the maximum building 
footprint for dwellings containing three or more units, and will take any 
appropriate action. (Manager) 

 
Manager Brown spoke regarding this item and responded to a question from Councilor Pols. 
 
Councilor Tucker moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to set a public hearing for 
September 17, 2012, on amendments to the Zoning Ordinance to increase the maximum 
building footprint for dwellings containing three or more units to 10,000 square feet. 
The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
95. The Town Council will consider appointments to the Town’s Boards and 

Committees, and will take any appropriate action. (Appointments Committee) 
 
Councilor Watson made the following nominations. 
 
Joan Viles, Dale Viles, and David Carpenter to the Cable TV Committee 
Christopher Green to the Marine Resource Committee 
Jackie Sartoris to the Sewer District Board of Trustees 
Timothy Higgins to the Village Review Board 



Town Council Minutes 
September 4, 2012 
Page 5 
 
Harold Hutchinson and Richard Moll to the Water District 
Steven Cohen to both the Conservation Commission and the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee (subsequently it was discovered that there was no Conservation Commission 
vacancy.  As a result, Mr. Cohen will not serve on the Conservation Commission at this time.) 
 
They were all appointed with nine (9) yeas. 
 
96. (ADDED) The Town Council will discuss the next actions regarding the MRRA 

TIF districts, and take any appropriate action.  
 
Councilor Tucker, Councilor Wilson, Chair King, and Councilor Favreau spoke regarding this 
item. 
 
Councilor Watson asked questions, to which Councilor Tucker responded. 
 
Councilor Pols asked questions, to which Manager Brown responded. 
 
Councilor Tucker moved, Councilor Wilson seconded, to inform the State Department 
of Economic and Community Development that both MRRA TIF districts have been 
terminated.  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas.  Councilor Pols was opposed due to 
the fact that he missed the executive session and did not have full information. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

(a) Approval of the Minutes of July 23, 2012 
(b) Approval of a request from Maine Natural Gas for the application ULP 2012-

06, Summer Street  
(c) Approval of a request from Maine Natural Gas for the application ULP 2012-

07, Pleasant Street  
 
Councilor Tucker moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to approve the Consent Agenda.  
The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the CA-b and CA-c permits will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Tucker seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The 
motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:52 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
 
 



Town Council Minutes 
September 4, 2012 
Page 6 
 
 
 
 
Frances Smith 
Town Clerk/Assistant to the Town Manager 
September 24, 2012 
 
 

October 1, 2012 
Date of Approval 

 

___________________________ 
Council Chair 

 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
September 17, 2012 

 
Councilors Present: Chair Joanne T. King, W. David Watson, Benjamin J. Tucker, Suzan 

Wilson, John M. Perreault, Gerald E. Favreau, Margo H. Knight, Sarah 
E. Brayman, and E. Benet Pols 

 
Councilors Absent: None  
 
Town Staff Present: Gary Brown, Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town Clerk/Assistant to 

Town Manager; John Eldridge, Finance Director; Anna Breinich, 
Director of Planning and Development; Mark Waltz, Police Captain; 
Tom Farrell, Director of Parks and Recreation; Don Koslosky, Deputy 
Fire Chief; Dan Devereau, Marine Resources Officer; Russ Wrede, 
Police Sergeant; and the TV video crew. 

 
Chair King called the meeting to order, led the Pledge of Allegiance and asked the Town 
Clerk for roll call. 
 
Public Comment: None 
 
Correspondence:   
 
Councilor Knight said she and Ms. Breinich accompanied a group from the American 
Association of State Highway and Traffic Officers, who were holding their annual meeting in 
Portland, on a trip to Brunswick on Amtrak. 
 
Adjustments to the Agenda:   None  
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Financial Update 
 
Manager Brown provided this update. 
 
(b) Council Committee Updates  
 
Reports were given on the following committees: Police Station Building Committee, 
Recreation and Trails Open Space Committee and the Master Plan Implementation 
Committee. 
 
(c) Acceptance of donation from Midcoast Hockey Association to assist with 

improvements to the Lishness Hockey Rink (Action required) 
 
Manager Brown introduced this item. 
 
Tom Farrell responded to questions from Councilor Perreault. 



Brunswick Town Council Minutes 
September 17, 2012 
Page 2  
 

2 
 

 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Favreau seconded, to accept funds from Midcoast 
Youth Hockey Association and to expend those funds for improvements and items 
related to the operation of the Lishness Hockey Rink.   The motion carried with nine (9) 
yeas. 
 
(A copy of a memo from Tom Farrell, a detailed list of the proposed improvements, and 
drawings from Midcoast Youth Hockey Association, will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
(d) Permission to apply for MMA safety enhancement grant for firefighting turnout 

gear and ergonomic office equipment for the Town Clerk’s office (Action 
required)   

 
Manager Brown introduced this item. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Tucker seconded, to allow the Town to apply for 
two MMA Safety Enhancement Grants to assist with costs for firefighting turnout gear 
and ergonomic office equipment.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the grant application for the Fire Department and a memo from the Human 
Resources Manager will be attached to the official minutes.)  
 
(e) Selection of MMA Voting Delegation for Annual meeting (Action required) 
 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to nominate Gary Brown as the 
voting delegate and Fran Smith as the alternate to be Brunswick’s voting delegation for 
the MMA Annual meeting.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of information on this item will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
(f) Permission to apply for the State Department of Conservation grant for shoreline 

and harbor management plan (Action required) 
 
Dan Devereau, Marine Resources Officer, spoke regarding this item and responded to 
questions from Councilor Favreau and Councilor Watson. 
 
Councilor Wilson spoke regarding this information. 
 
Councilor Wilson moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to allow the Town to apply for 
the State Department of Conservation Shoreline and Harbor Management Planning 
Grant in the amount of $20,000.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of a memo from Dan Devereaux and the grant applications will be attached to the 
official minutes.) 
 
(g) (ADDED) Amtrak coming to Brunswick November 1 



Brunswick Town Council Minutes 
September 17, 2012 
Page 3  
 

3 
 

 
Manager Brown spoke regarding this item. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
97. The Town Council will hear public comments on the following Automobile 

Graveyard/Junkyard License and Automobile Recycling applications, and will 
take any appropriate action. (Manager) 
 
Shawn Letourneau 
D/B/A: Brunswick Auto Recycling, LLC    Shawn Letourneau 
117 Bath Road 

 
Chair King opened the public hearing; hearing no comments, she closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to approve applications for an 
Automobile Graveyard, Junkyard, and Automobile Recycling License for Brunswick 
Auto Recycling, LLC.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
98. The Town Council will hear public comments on amendments to Chapter 15 

“Traffic and Vehicles” regarding adding four flag stops for buses, and will take 
any appropriate action.  (Councilor Knight and Councilor Brayman) 

 
Chair King opened the public hearing; hearing no comments, she closed the public hearing. 
 
Lee Karker, Executive Director of Coastal Trans, spoke regarding this item and responded to 
questions from Chair King, Councilor Favreau, Councilor Watson, and Councilor Perreault. 
 
Councilor Wilson, Chair King, and Councilor Brayman spoke regarding this item. 
 
Manager Brown spoke regarding this item. 
 
Captain Mark Waltz spoke regarding this item and responded to questions from Councilor 
Knight, Chair King, and Councilor Wilson.  
 
Melinda Gale from Brunswick spoke regarding this item. 
 
Manager Brown spoke regarding a letter he received from BDA in support of this item. 
 
Councilor Perreault, Chair King, Councilor Favreau, and Councilor Pols spoke regarding this 
item. 
 
Motion 
Councilor Knight moved, Councilor Brayman seconded, to adopt amendments to 
Chapter 15 “Traffic and Vehicles” regarding adding four flag stops for buses.   
 



Brunswick Town Council Minutes 
September 17, 2012 
Page 4  
 

4 
 

Councilor Pols moved, to amend the language to take out #4 (Federal Street/ Green Street 
stop) but there was no second. 
 
Motion 
Councilor Tucker moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to table this item.  The motion 
carried with six (6) yeas.  Councilor Pols, Councilor Brayman, and Councilor Perreault 
were opposed. 
 
99. The Town Council will hear public comments on amendments to the Zoning 

Ordinance to increase the maximum building footprint for dwellings containing 
three or more units, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 

 
Manager Brown spoke regarding this item. 
 
Chair King opened public hearing. 
 
Scott Howard, developer, spoke regarding this item. 
 
Chair King closed the public hearing. 
 
Anna Breinich, Director of Planning and Development, and, Charles Frizzle, Planning Board 
chair, responded to questions from Councilor Brayman and Councilor Pols.  
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Favreau seconded, to adopt amendments to the 
Zoning Ordinance to increase the maximum building footprint for dwellings containing 
three or more units to 10,000 square feet.  The motion carried with seven (7) yeas. 
Councilor Pols was opposed. Councilor Perreault abstained due to being a builder and 
developer. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
100. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for October 1, 2012, on 

amendments to the Zoning ordinance regarding rezoning the west side of Federal 
Street between Mason and Center Streets to Town Center 1, and will take any 
appropriate action.  (Manager) 

 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Tucker seconded, to set a public hearing for 
October 1, 2012, on amendments to the Zoning ordinance regarding rezoning the west 
side of Federal Street between Mason and Center Street from Town Residential 2 to 
Town Center 1.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
101. The Town Council will consider adopting “A Resolution Authorizing the 

Demolition of Real Property Located at 6 Industry Road and the Use of Special 
Revenue Funds to Complete the Demolition,” and will take any appropriate 
action. (Manager) 

 



Brunswick Town Council Minutes 
September 17, 2012 
Page 5  
 

5 
 

Manager Brown spoke regarding this item and responded to questions from Councilor Pols 
Councilor Perreault and Councilor Brayman.  
 
Councilor Wilson and Councilor Pols spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Tucker moved, Councilor Wilson seconded, to adopt “A Resolution 
Authorizing the Demolition of Real Property Located at 6 Industry Road and the Use of 
Special Revenue Funds to Complete the Demolition.”  The motion carried with nine (9) 
yeas. 
 
(A copy of a memo from Manager Brown, a list of the proposals, and the draft resolution will 
be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Tucker seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The 
motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:22 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
 
Frances Smith 
Town Clerk/Assistant to the Town Manager 
September 24, 2012 

October 1, 2012 
Date of Approval 

___________________________ 
Council Chair 

 
 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - C 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 
 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

TO: Town Council 

FROM: Fran Smith, Town Clerk 

SUBJECT: Appointments for November 6th Election 

DATE: 09/21/2012 

 
I am requesting the Council appoint the following person to serve on Election Day, 
November 6, 2012. 
 
Warden: 
Fran Smith 
 
Deputy Wardens: 
Elin Gould 
Annee Tara 
Joe Zrioka 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - D 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



O:\Word\Election\Forms\WARRANT 11-06-12.docx 

 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 

Warrant for Municipal Election 
November 6, 2012 

COUNTY OF CUMBERLAND, ss} 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK      } 
 
TO ELIN M. GOULD, RESIDENT OF THE TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, CUMBERLAND COUNTY, 
MAINE: 

 
YOU ARE HEREBY REQUIRED, in the name of the State of Maine, to notify and warn the voters of the Town 
of Brunswick, Districts 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7 of the following: 
 
YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED, that on November 6, 2012, a Municipal Election will be held in the Town of 
Brunswick, Districts 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7 at the following polling place for all voters to vote for the offices 
indicated herein: 
 
Voting Place Name Brunswick Junior High School Voting Place Location 65 Columbia Ave  
  

Polls Open at  7:00 A.M. Polls Close at 8:00 P.M. 
 
The following offices will be determined: 
 Councilor for Districts 3, 4 and At Large 
 School Board for Districts 3, 4, and At Large 

 
Date/Time of Absentee Processing (check all that apply): 
 

  Day Before Election Day (11/05/2012) (at Recreation Center, 30 Federal Street) 
 Inspection Time(s):  9:00 a.m. to 10:00 a.m.  
 Processing Time(s): 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.  
  During Election Day (11/06/2012) Processing Time(s):  1:30 p.m., 5:00 p.m., and 8:00 p.m.  

(At Brunswick Junior High School, 65 Columbia Ave) 
 
 Only after 8 p.m. on Election Day (11/2)  
 

Dated at Brunswick this 1st day of October 2012 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
 
ATTEST: ________________________(Town Clerk) 



O:\Word\Election\Forms\WARRANT 11-06-12.docx 

 
 
 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 
RETURN OF WARRANT 

 
County of Cumberland, ss} 
Town of Brunswick    } 
 
I certify that I have notified the voters of Brunswick, Districts 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7 of the time and place of the Municipal 
Election and processing of absentee ballots by posting attested copies of the within warrant at the following locations, 
each being a public and conspicuous place within the indicated District: 
 
District 1 Mid Coast Hospital 
District 2 Parkview Hospital 
District 3 Brunswick High School 
District 4 Sunshine Laundry 
District 5 Libby’s Market 
District 6 Big Top Deli 
District 7 Warming's Market 
 
On ____________________, which is at least 7 days prior to Election Day.   
 (Date) 
 
Dated at Brunswick this _____ day of October, 2012. 

 
 
 

______________________________________________ 
Elin M. Gould, Resident of the Town of Brunswick 

 
 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - E 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



O:\Word\Election\Advertisements\RegistrarNoticehours November12.docx 

Public Notice 
Town of Brunswick 

Hours for Absentee Voting and Voter Registration 
for November 6, 2012 State and Municipal Election 

 
Absentee Voting and Voter registration hours for new registrations 
or changes to existing registrations will be Monday – Friday 8:30 
a.m. to 4:30 pm. at the Town Clerk’s Office, 28 Federal Street.   
 
The Clerk’s Office will hold extended voter registration and 
absentee voting hours at the Recreation Center 30 Federal 
Street: 
 
From 7:00 a.m. to 7:00. p.m. 
Monday, October 29, 2012 
Tuesday, October 30, 2012  
Wednesday, October 31, 2012 (evening hours will be at Town 
Hall) 
Thursday, November 1, 2012 
 
From 8:30 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. 
Saturday, October 27, 2012 
 
Absentee ballots will also be available at the times listed above. 
Beginning Monday, October 22nd to Thursday, November 1st, 
absentee voting will be at the Recreation Center, 30 Federal 
Street (next to Town Hall) 
 
Any questions, please call 725-6658 or go to 
www.brunswickme.org for more information  
 
 
Times Record:  October 3, 2012 


	mr a no
	mr b yes
	mr b October 1 quiet zone update
	TOWN OF BRUNSWICK

	mr c yes
	mr c oct 1 grant from police 2012 Byrne Subgrant
	mr d yes
	mr D EMPG 2012_20120924102216
	102 yes
	102 PH notice oct 1 2012 zoning federal street
	102 ANNA STUFF zoning change
	103 yes
	104 yes
	105 yes
	105 Board full for Oct 1 meeting
	12-oct app comm vacancy list.pdf
	App 09-19-2012 Appointment comm report
	2012, harvey earle
	2012 Cohen, Stepen CC bike

	ca a yes
	ca a sept 4 2012 min
	ca b yes
	ca b sept 17 2012 min
	ca c yes
	ca d yes
	ca d Oct 1 WARRANT 11-06-12
	ca e yes
	ca e oct 1 RegistrarNoticehours November12
	104 full except memo.pdf
	Oct 1 102 b mckeen st costs.pdf - Adobe Acrobat
	Oct 1 102 cMcKeen St. Landing Easement Plan 09-05-12 Sheet 1
	Oct 1102 d McKeen St Landing Easement Plan 09-05-12  Sheet 2
	Oct 1 Mckeen Resolution Acceptance of Parks at McKeen Street Housing

	104 Spetember 10 memo regarding McKeen st recreation assets.pdf
	TOWN OF BRUNSWICK


